NASA RFI # NNG08GEWA2 
Responses to Questions
5/28/2008
There were thirty-three questions submitted and received as a result of the RFI and Site Visit.  Twenty-six of the questions and answers were posted on 5/22/08, however the document was corrupted during upload and appeared to blank when opening. All 33 questions and answers appear below. No more questions are being accepted on the RFI. 

Due to the uploading issue with the questions and answers the RFI has been extended to June 5, 2008.  The responses to the RFI NNG08GEWA2 are due June 5, 2008. 

1. What are the work schedules for the employees at NASA Goddard? – normal day,afternoon/evening shifts, flex time, Monday / Friday flex schedule, lunch times? 
Response: Although the Center offers Flexible Work Schedules (FWS) and Maxiflex, in accordance with Goddard Procedures Regulations (GPR) 3600.1A, the Center’s standard business hours are Monday through Friday 8:00am –4:30pm.  With regard to maxiflex, with supervisory approval, civil servant employees may arrive for work anytime within a 24 hour period.  However, the typical arrival time is between 6:00 and 9:00am.  The GPR also states that “there will be no additional services or increased service levels” outside the standard business hours to exclusively accommodate employees’ alternate work schedule options.   Additionally, there are no standard lunchtime hours, although they are typically between 11:00am -2:00pm.  The Center is closed on federal holidays.   

2. What is the building population of building 1 and the population of the buildings adjacent to building 1? 
Response: The population of building 1 is 130 and the population of the adjacent buildings are as follows:
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3. What is the building population of  building 21 and the population of the buildings adjacent to building 21?
Response:  The population of building 21 is 297 and the population of the adjacent buildings are as follows:
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4. Please provided a map (with a distance scale) of NASA Goddard identifying the buildings and the population in each building? 
Response:  For security reasons, we are unable to provide this data and apologize for any inconvenience this may cause.
5. What is the average number of daily transactions at bldg 21 café? 
Response:  FY 08 year to date through 8/12 periods: 933 


   FY 07 full year: 1165

These transactions represent the total number for both cafes.    

6. What is the average count of employees visiting the library daily? 
Response: 120 

7. Why is the Library being closed? 
Response:  The library is not being closed.  As stated in the RFI, “the Center is considering making available a portion of what is now its Library in Building 21, with minimal furnishings thereof, if there are viable proposals for an alternative service in the conversion of that space to a collaborative facility such as a cyber-café”. 
8. Why has bldg 1 café stopped serving breakfast as of April 18th? 
Response:  The bldg. 1 café stopped serving breakfast based on a request from the current contractor.  
9. How many training sessions take place during a month (average) in building 1? 
Response:  Classrooms in Training Facility – E100B, E100D and E100E were      used approximately 718 times during the period May 2007 – May 19, 2008.

The monthly average for # of times classrooms were used for that period is 55.23.
10. How many trainees per class room in building 1? 
Response:  The typical class participant level is 15 – 20 trainees.
11. Is lunch subsidized for the trainees? 
Response:  Lunch is not subsidized for trainees.  Occasionally, a long-term development program will include lunch as part of the training event.

12. What is the average number of daily transactions at bldg 1 café? 
Response:  See response to Question #5 above.
13. Please provide an inventory of vending machines identified by machined type and number of machines?
Response:  Attached to this Posting 
14. Can the Café and Catering menus be posted the NASA intranet?
Response:  Yes. 
15. Can you provide photos of the food service operations and the library? 
Response:   Not at this time.  However, another site visit will be scheduled after the solicitation is released and offerors will be able to take pictures at that time.
16. Could you provide a copy of the bidders attended the RFI site visit?
Response:  
ARAMARK

BD/Coffee Connections

DSC Hospitality

Enterprise Program, St. of MD

Compass Group, USA/Eurest Dining Services
Guest Services

I.L. Creations

Sodexo

17.    Are there any special events? 
Response:  There are normal catered events.  No large whole campus events.
18. Do you have any data on cafeteria participation - number of employees served for breakfast & lunch? 
Response:  See response above to Question #5.
19. Current contractor & length of service 
Response:  The current contractor is Compass, USA d/b/a Eurest Dining Services and the contract was awarded 7/1/97.  
20. Are cash registers, computers, time clocks, office furniture provided? 
Response:  With the exception of the office furniture, the other items listed are all provided from the current cafeteria contractor.  
21. Are separate phone and computer lines provided? 
Response:  Telephone lines are provided for in house calls.  Computer lines are not provided.  
22. Who is responsible for the purchase and replacement of service ware and small wares? 
Response:  Under the terms of the current agreement, the contractor is responsible for these items.
23. Are the current contract employees union employees? 
Response:  No, there are no unions representing the current workforce    under the terms of the current agreement. 
24. Are box lunches provided on the current contract for the trainees? If so what are the average annual sales for the past 2 years 
Response:  Box lunches are not included for trainees.
25. Who is responsible for the light bulbs and what is the number and type of light bulbs used each year?  How many are replaced annually? 
Response:  The Facilities Management Division is responsible for the bulb replacement and as a result, the response to the second part of this question is not applicable.  
26. How much of the library space will be used for the cyber cafe? Will the books and shelving stay?

Response:  As stated in the RFI, “the Center is considering making available a portion of what is now its Library in Building 21, with minimal furnishings thereof, if there are viable proposals for an alternative service in the conversion of that space to a collaborative facility such as a cyber-café”. 
27. Can you provide the food service sales for buildings 21 and 1 (separately) for the last 2 years (by each respective year)? 

Response: FY08  - year to date through 8/12 periods:   $622,544 (net of sales tax)

                   FY 07 - full year:  $1,140,404 (net of sales tax)

These sales represent the total for both cafes as well as the mobile food truck as they are considered one operation.  As a result, the contractor is unable to provide a breakdown of sales by building.  
28.  Please provided the sales from the mobile food service truck(s) for the last 2 years (separated by year)? 

Response:  The sales are included in the total sales annotated in #27 above.  

29. Please provide the sales for the vending machines for the last 2 years (separated by each respective year)? 

Response:  

	Month/Year
	Cumulative

	FY-06 TOTAL
	$529,214 

	FY-07 TOTAL
	$500,624 


30. How much catering revenue has been generated in the last 2 years by the current contractor? 

Response:  $88,185
31. How many special events have occurred during the last 2 years?  How many meals were served during each special event and what is the average monthly revenue for the past 2 years? 

Response:  No breakdown of #s of events is available.  Sales are as follows:

FY 08 through period 8/12:  $35,699 

FY 07 full year:  $52,486 

32. Provide breakdown of annual sales for each building cafeteria____________  catering_____________? 

Response: No breakdown of #s of events is available.  Sales are as follows:

FY 08 through period 8/12:  $35,699 

FY 07 full year:  $52,486 

33. What is the present price of the contract, prices for the last four years to include any mods that were reflected and deductions taken for each year? 

Response:  Answers #27 thru 32 above were provided by the current contractor.  The current food services concession agreement is between NASA’s Goddard Space Flight Center’s employee exchange (i.e., GEWA, a non-appropriated fund instrumentality of the Federal Government) and the Concessionaire.  Under the terms of this Agreement, the Concessionaire makes monthly commissions payments (with a guaranteed minimum monthly payment to GEWA for its vending and cafeteria operations); this current agreement does not have a definitive value.  
